Message

From:

Sent:
To:

CC:

Subject:

Will send

Elon Musk [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=B3D59F261F6F431AA9D679F79478E3AB-ELON MUSK_7]
8/7/2018 7:11:15 PM

Sarah O'Brien [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=1bc7be9f56124d1689f5d6b0d5e551a5-Sarah

OBrie]

Todd Maron [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=675a7aa9¢c8c0416ab00fcd1e6c89b810-Todd

Maron]; Deepak Ahuja [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=d53a90ce5c09416485c13b2a9balf8b3-Deepak Ahuj]; Dave Arnold [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=

Exchange Administrative

Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=29df0a7448f04984910ec59f5077bd85-Dave Arnold]; Sam Teller [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange

Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=3bbd889935194be5bf3603b89339f2ae-Sam Teller]
Re: Draft Email 420

On Aug 7, 2018, at 11:52 AM, Sarah O'Brien <sobrien@tesla.com> wrote:

Shall we leave you send this to employees first and then we’ll post it on the blog as a message from to our employees?

To me, that feels like the best approach.

CONFIDENTIAL

On Aug 7, 2018, at 11:49 AM, Elon Musk <erm(@tesla.com> wrote:

Great

On Aug 7, 2018, at 11:44 AM, Sarah O'Brien <sobrien@tesla.com> wrote:

Apologies Elon, use this version:

Earlier today, I announced that I’'m considering taking Tesla private at a price of $420/share. I wanted to
let you know my rationale for this, and why I think this is the best path forward.

First, a final decision has not yet been made, but the reason for doing this is all about creating the
environment for Tesla to operate best. As a public company, we are subject to wild swings in our stock
price that can be a major distraction for our employees, all of whom are shareholders. Being public also

subjects us to the quarterly earnings cycle that puts enormous pressure on Tesla to make decisions that
may be right for a given quarter, but not necessarily right for the long-term. Finally, as the most shorted
stock in the history of the stock market, being public means that there are large numbers of people who
have the incentive to attack the company.
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I fundamentally believe that we are at our best when everyone is focused on executing, when we can
remain focused on our long-term mission, and when there are not perverse incentives for people to try to
harm what we’re all trying to achieve.

This is especially true for a company like Tesla that has a long-term, forward-looking mission. SpaceX
is a perfect example: it is far more operationally efficient, and that is largely due to the fact that it is
privately held. This is not to say that it will make sense for Tesla to be private over the long-term. In the
future, once Tesla enters a phase of slower, more predictable growth, it will likely make sense to return
to the public markets.

Here’s what I envision being private would mean for all shareholders, including all of our employees.

First, I would like to structure this so that all shareholders have a choice. Either they can stay investors
in a private Tesla or they can be bought out at $420 per share, which is a 20% premium over the stock
price following our Q2 earnings call (which had already increased by 16%). My hope is for all
shareholders to remain, but if they prefer to be bought out, then this would enable that to happen at a
nice premium.

Second, my intention is for all Tesla employees to remain shareholders of the company, just as is the
case at SpaceX. If we were to go private, employees would still be able to periodically sell their shares
and exercise their options. This would enable you to still share in the growing value of the company that
you have all worked so hard to build over time.

Third, the intention is not to merge SpaceX and Tesla. They would continue to have separate ownership
and governance structures.

Finally, this has nothing to do with accumulating control for myself. I own about 20% of the company
now, and I don’t envision that being substantially different after any deal is completed.

Basically, I’'m trying to accomplish an outcome where Tesla can operate at its best, free from as much
distraction and short-term thinking as possible, and where there is as little change for all of our
investors, including all of our employees, as possible.

This proposal to go private would ultimately be finalized through a vote of our shareholders. If the
process ends the way I expect it will, a private Tesla would ultimately be an enormous opportunity for
all of us. Either way, the future is very bright and we’ll keep fighting to achieve our mission.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Elon

On Aug 7, 2018, at 11:40 AM, Sarah O'Brien <sobrien@tesla.com> wrote:

Below is a draft email for your consideration.

Immediately after you send something to employees, we’ll get it up on the blog.

Kok

Earlier today, I announced that I’'m considering taking Tesla private at a price of
$420/share. I wanted to let you know my rationale for this, and why I think this is best
path forward.

First, a final decision has not yet been made, but the reason for doing this is all about
creating the environment for Tesla to operate best. As a public company, we are subject
to wild swings in our stock price that can be a major distraction for our employees, all of
whom are shareholders. Being public also subjects us to the quarterly earnings cycle that
puts enormous pressure on Tesla to make decisions that may be right for a given quarter,
but not necessarily right for the long-term. Finally, as the most shorted stock in the
history of the stock market, being public means that there are large numbers of people
who have the incentive to attack the company.

I fundamentally believe that we are at our best when everyone is focused on executing,
when we can remain focused on our long-term mission, and when there are not perverse
incentives for people to try to harm what we’re all trying to achieve.

This is especially true for a company like Tesla that has a long-term, forward-looking
mission. SpaceX is a perfect example: it is far more operationally efficient, and that is
largely due to the fact that it is privately held. This is not to say that it will make sense
for Tesla to be private over the long-term. In the future, once Tesla enters a phase of
slower, more predictable growth, it will likely make sense to return to the public markets.

Here’s what I envision being private would mean for all shareholders, including all of our
employees.
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First, I would like to structure this so that all shareholders have a choice. Either they can
stay investors in a private Tesla or they can be bought out at $420 per share, which is a
20% premium over the stock price following our Q2 earnings call (which had already
increased by 16%). My suggestion is for all shareholders to remain, but if they prefer to
be bought out, then this would enable that to happen at a nice premium.

Second, my intention is for all Tesla employees to remain shareholders of the company,
just as is the case at SpaceX. If we were to go private, employees would still be able to
periodically sell their shares and exercise their options. This would enable you to still
share in the growing value of the company that you have all worked so hard to build over
time.

Third, the intention is not to merge SpaceX and Tesla. They would continue to have
separate ownership and governance structures.

Finally, this has nothing to do with accumulating control for myself. I own about 20% of
the company now, and I don’t envision that being substantially different after any deal is
completed.

Basically, I'm trying to accomplish an outcome where Tesla can operate at its best, free
from as much distraction and short-term thinking as possible, and where there is as little

change for all of our investors, including all of our employees, as possible.

This would be finalized through a vote of our shareholders in the opportunity for all of
us. Either way, the future is very bright and we’ll keep fighting to achieve our mission.

Elon
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